#### LABOR AGREEMENT

between

## THE CITY OF ST FRANCIS

and

LAW ENFORCEMENT LABOR SERVICES, INC.

Representing POLICE SERGEANTS

## JANUARY 1, 2025THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2027

RATIFIED BY THE UNION ON NOVEMBER \_\_, 2024, RATIFIED BY THE CITY ON DECEMBER \_\_2024

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE 2. RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE 3. UNION SECURITY	1
ARTICLE 4. NO STRIKE	2
ARTICLE 5. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	2
ARTICLE 6. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE 7. SAVINGS CLAUSE	5
ARTICLE 8. SICK LEAVE	5
ARTICLE 9. JURY DUTY	6
ARTICLE 10. LEAVES OF ABSENCE	7
ARTICLE 11. HOURS OF WORK	7
ARTICLE 12. HOLIDAYS	8
ARTICLE 13. VACATIONS	9
ARTICLE 14. FUNERAL LEAVE	9
ARTICLE 15. DISCIPLINE	10
ARTICLE 16. WAGE RATE	10
ARTICLE 17. UNIFORMS	10
ARTICLE 18. INSURANCE	11
ARTICLE 19. SEVERANCE PAY	12
ARTICLE 20. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE SAVINGS	12
ARTICLE 21. PROBATIONARY PERIOD	12
ARTICLE 22. SENIORITY	13
ARTICLE 23. COMPLETE AGREEMENT	
ARTICLE 24. DURATION	

APPENDIX A – SALARY SCHEDULE

This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of St. Francis, hereinafter called the "Employer" and the Law Enforcement Labor Services, Inc., hereinafter called the "Union." This Agreement shall apply to only full-time employees.

## **ARTICLE 1: PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT**

The intent and purpose of this Agreement is to:

- 1.1 Establish certain hours, wages and other conditions of employment; and
- 1.2 Establish procedures for the resolution of disputes concerning the interpretation and/or application of the Agreement

The Employer and the Union, through this Agreement continue their dedication to the highest quality police protection for the citizens of St. Francis. Both parties recognize this Agreement as pledge of this dedication.

## **ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION**

The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative of the employees of the City of St. Francis, in the unit of:

"All essential employees in the job classification of Sergeant employed by the St. Francis Police Department, St. Francis, Minnesota, who are public employees within the meaning of Minn. Stat. 179A.03, Subd. 14, excluding Deputy Chief, Chief of Police and all other supervisory and confidential employees."

#### **ARTICLE 3: UNION SECURITY**

- 3.1 The Employer agrees to cooperate with the Union in facilitating the deduction of the regular monthly Union dues for those employees in the unit who are members of the Union and who request in writing to have their regular monthly Union dues checked off and remit to the appropriate designated officer of the Union.
- 3.2 The Union agrees to indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders or judgments brought or issued against the Employer as a result of any action taken or not taken by the Employer under provisions of this Article.
- 3.3 The Union may designate one (1) employee from the bargaining unit to act as steward and one (1) employee to act as alternate and shall inform the Employer in writing of such choice.

## **ARTICLE 4: NO STRIKE**

- 4.1 Neither the Union, its officers or agents, nor any of the employees covered by this Agreement will engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any strike, slowdowns, mass resignations, mass absenteeism, the willful absence from one's position, the stoppage of work or the abstinence in whole or in part of the full, faithful and proper performance of the duties of employment for the purpose of inducing, influencing or coercing a change in the conditions or compensation of the rights, privileges or obligations of employment, during the life of this Agreement.
- 4.2 In the event that any employee violates this Article, the Union shall immediately notify any such employee in writing to cease and desist from such action and shall instruct them to immediately return to their normal duties. Any or all employees who violate any of the provisions of this Article may be discharged or otherwise disciplined.

#### **ARTICLE 5: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

- 5.1 Definition of a Grievance. A grievance is defined as a dispute or disagreement as to the interpretation or application of the specific terms and conditions of this Agreement.
- 5.2 Union Representatives. The Employer will recognize Representatives designated by the Union as the grievance representatives of the bargaining unit having the duties and responsibilities established by this Article. The Union shall notify the Employer in writing of the names of such Union Representatives and of their successors when so designated as provided by 6.2 of this Agreement.
- 5.3 Processing of a Grievance. It is recognized and accepted by the Union and the Employer that the processing of grievances as hereinafter provided is limited by the job duties and responsibilities of the Employees and shall, therefore, be accomplished during normal working hours only when consistent with such Employee duties and responsibilities. The aggrieved Employee and Union Representative shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time without loss in pay when a grievance is investigated and presented to the Employer during normal working hours provided that the Employee and the Union Representative have notified and received the approval of the designated supervisor who has determined that such absence is reasonable and would not be detrimental to the work programs of the Employer.
- 5.4 Procedure. Grievances, as defined in Section 5.1, shall be resolved in conformance with the following procedure:

**Step 1.** An Employee claiming a violation concerning the interpretation or application of this Agreement shall, within twenty-one (21) calendar days after such alleged violation

has occurred, present such grievance to the Employee's supervisor as designated by the Employer. The Employer-designated representative will discuss and give an answer to such Step 1 grievance within ten (10) calendar days after receipt. A grievance not resolved in Step 1 and appealed in Step 2 shall be placed in writing setting forth the nature of the grievance, the facts on which it is based, the provision or provisions of the Agreement allegedly violated, the remedy requested, and shall be appealed to Step 2 within ten (10) calendar days after the Employer-designated representative's final answer in Step 1. Any grievance not appealed in writing to Step 2 by the Union within ten (10) calendar days shall be considered waived.

**Step 2.** If appealed, the written grievance shall be presented by the Union and discussed with the City Administrator or the City Administrator's designated Step 2 representative. The City Administrator or the City Administrator's designated Step 2 representative shall give the Union the Employer's Step 2 answer in writing within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of such Step 2 grievance. A grievance not resolved in Step 2 may be appealed to Step 3 within ten (10) calendar days following the City Administrator or the City Administrator's designated Step 2 answer. Any grievance not appealed in writing to Step 3 by the Union within ten (10) calendar days shall be considered waived.

**Step 3.** A grievance unresolved in Step 3 and appealed to Step 4 by the Union shall be submitted to arbitration subject to the provisions of the Public Employment Labor Relations Act of 1971 as amended. The selection of an arbitrator shall be made in accordance with the "Rules Governing the Arbitration of Grievances" established by the State of Minnesota Bureau of Mediation Services. For grievance matters involving written disciplinary action, discharge, or termination, the assignment of an arbitrator shall be consistent with Minnesota State Statutes Section 626.982, as amended.

#### 5.5 Arbitrator's Authority.

- A. The arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to or subtract from the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the specific issue(s) submitted in writing by the Employer and the Union, and shall have no authority to make a decision on any other issue not so submitted.
- B. The arbitrator shall be without power to make decisions contrary to, or inconsistent with, or modifying or varying in any way the application of laws, rules, or regulations having the force and effect of law. The arbitrator's decision shall be submitted in writing within thirty (30) days following close of the hearing or the submission of briefs by the parties, whichever be later, unless the parties agree to an extension. The decision shall be binding on both the Employer and the

Union and shall be based solely on the arbitrator's interpretation or application of the express terms of this Agreement and to the facts of the grievance presented.

- C. The fees and expenses for the arbitrator's services and proceedings shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Union provided that each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceedings, it may cause such a record to be made, providing it pays for the record. If both parties desire a verbatim record of the proceedings, the cost shall be shared equally.
- 5.6 Waiver. If a grievance is not presented within the time limits set forth above, it shall be considered "waived." If a grievance is not appealed to the next step within the specified time limit or any agreed extension thereof, it shall be considered settled on the basis of the Employer's last answer. If the Employer does not answer a grievance or an appeal thereof within the specified time limits, the Union may elect to take the grievance to the next step. The time limit in each step may be extended by mutual written Agreement of the Employer and the Union in each step.
- 5.7 Choice of Remedy. If, as a result of the written Employer response in Step 3, the grievance remains unresolved, and if the grievance involves the suspension, demotion, or discharge of an employee who has completed the required probationary period, the grievance may be appealed either to Step 4 of Article 5 or a procedure such as: Civil Service, Veteran's Preference or Fair Employment. If appealed to any procedure other than Step 4 of Article 5, the grievance is not subject to the arbitration procedure as provided in Step 4 of Article 5. The aggrieved employee shall indicate in writing which procedure is to be utilized, Step 4 of Article 5 or another appeal procedure, and shall sign a statement to the effect that the choice of any other hearing precludes the aggrieved employee from making a subsequent appeal through Step 4 of Article 5. Except that with respect to statutes under the jurisdiction of the United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission an employee pursuing a statutory remedy is not precluded from also pursuing an appeal under this grievance procedure.

#### **ARTICLE 6: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

- 6.1 The Union recognizes the prerogative of the Employer to operate and manage its affairs in all respects in accordance with existing and future laws and regulations of the appropriate authorities, including municipal policies and work rules. The prerogatives or authority which the Employer has not official abridged, delegated or modified by this Agreement are retained by the Employer.
- 6.2 Except as limited by the specific provisions of this Agreement, the Employer shall retain whatever rights and authority are necessary for it to operate and direct the affairs of the City of St. Francis in all of its various aspects, including but not limited to the right to

operate and manage all facilities and equipment; to establish or discontinue functions and programs; to set and amend budgets; to determine the utilization of technology; to establish and modify the organizational structure; to schedule working hours and assign overtime; to select, direct and determine the number of personnel; to hire, promote, suspend, discipline or discharge personnel for just cause; to lay off or relieve Employees due to lack of work or other reasons; to make and enforce reasonable rules and regulations; to contract with vendors or others for goods and/or services, and to perform such other inherent managerial functions as set forth in the Minnesota Public Employee Labor Relations Act of 1971, as amended.

6.3 The Employer's failure to exercise any right, prerogative, or function hereby reserved to it, or the Employer's exercise of any such right, prerogative, or function in a particular way, shall not be considered a waiver of the Employer's right to exercise such right, prerogative, or function or preclude it from exercising the same in some other way not in conflict with the express provisions of this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 7: SAVINGS CLAUSE**

This Agreement is subject to the. laws of the United States, the State of Minnesota, and the signed municipality. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction or administrative agency from whose final judgment or decree no appeal has been taken within the time provided, such provisions shall be voided. All other provisions shall be continued in full force and effect. The voided provisions shall be renegotiated at the request of either party.

#### **ARTICLE 8: SICK LEAVE**

- 8.1 All employees in the bargaining unit shall accumulate sick leave at the rate of one (1) working day, based on their regularly scheduled hours per shift, each calendar month of full-time service. Sick leave may be accumulated to a maximum of one hundred (100) days. Any accumulation over one hundred (100) days shall be placed in the sick leave bank to be used for personal illness or family illness allowed by state statute. Sick leave shall be charged in one (1) hour increments.
- 8.2 Sick leave shall be granted for absence from duty because of illness, injury or legal quarantine of the employee or minor child. In addition, sick leave may be used in the following instances:
  - a. An employee may use accrued sick leave benefits for absences due to an illness of or injury to the employee's child, step child, adult child, spouse, sibling, parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandchild, grandparent, or stepparent, for reasonable periods of time as the employee's attendance may be necessary, on the same terms upon which the employee is able to use sick leave benefits for the employee's own illness or injury

except that leaves due to illness of or injury to the employee's adult child, spouse, sibling, parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandchild, grandparent, or stepparent to no more than 160 hours in any 12-month period.

- b. An employee may also use sick leave for safety leave for such reasonable periods of time as may be necessary up to 160 hours in any 12-month period. Safety leave may be used for assistance to the employee or assistance to the relatives described above. For the purpose of this section, "safety leave" is leave for the purpose of providing or receiving assistance because of sexual assault, domestic abuse, or stalking.
- 8.3 In order to be eligible for sick leave with pay, an employee must:
  - a. Report to the Chief of Police the reason for the absence by 8:00 a.m. or if the employee is not on a day shift at least two hours prior to the start of the shift.
  - b. Keep the Chief of Police informed of the employee's condition.
  - c. Submit a medical certification if the absence is more than three (3) days if required by the Chief of Police.
- 8.4 An employee who has been unable to work for a period of time because of illness or accident may be required, before being permitted to return to work, to provide medical evidence that the employee is again able to perform all significant duties of the employee's job in a competent manner and without hazard to the employee or others. All medical evidence must be supplied by a certified physician approved by the Employer.
- 8.5 Claiming sick leave when the employee or immediate family members are not ill or suffering from accident may be cause for disciplinary action, including cancellation of sick leave benefits, suspension, demotion or termination of employment. The Employee must notify the Chief of Police of the need for leave at the earliest possible moment and before the start of the employee's scheduled working hours. Failure to notify the Chief may result in payroll deduction for such time taken.
- 8.6 In the event an employee is absent for three (3) consecutive working days without authorized leave, the employee shall be deemed to have voluntarily resigned. If the Employee can show to the satisfaction of the Employer that the employees absence or failure to report for work was due to an emergency beyond the employee's control the Employer may permit the employee's reinstatement. Employees who are absent without authority leave for periods of less than three (3) consecutive working days will be subject to disciplinary action.
- 8.7. MEDICAL LEAVE. Members of the bargaining unit will be covered by the statutory paid leave program effective January 1, 2026. The City will pay the fifty percent

(50%) premium required by Minn. Stat. Sec. 268B.14 and the employee will pay 50% of the premium.

8.8 The members of the bargaining unit will be covered by the City's policy on Employee Sick and Safe Time (ESST) on the same basis as the general non-represented employee group. Any change to the City's ESST policy will apply to the members of this bargaining unit on the same basis as the general non-represented employee group.

## **ARTICLE 9: JURY DUTY**

All employees in the bargaining unit shall be granted a leave of absence for jury duty. The employee shall be paid the employee's regular salary by the City, with the understanding that upon the completion of jury duty, the employee shall exhibit the jury check to the Chief of Police and that amount of such check, less the amount included for traveling expenses, shall be deducted from the employee's next regular pay check.

## **ARTICLE 10: LEAVES OF ABSENCE**

The City Council, in its sole discretion, may grant any regular employee a leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed ninety days. Such leave may be extended to a maximum period of one year where the City Council, in its sole discretion, believes extraordinary circumstances warrant such extension. No vacation or sick leave shall accrue during a leave of absence without pay.

#### **ARTICLE 11: HOURS OF WORK**

- 11.1 This Article is intended only to define the normal hours of work and normal scheduling and to provide the basis for the calculation of overtime or other premium pay. Nothing herein shall be construed as a guarantee of hours of work per day or per week. The Employer reserves the right to establish work schedules without regard to unusual or traditional practices. Regular schedules shall not be construed as excluding shift rotations and emergency work schedules based on public necessity as determined by the Employer. The Employer reserves the right to establish work schedules. These schedules shall be posted on the first day of each month period to the scheduled month, (example: October schedule to be posted September 1st).
- 11.2 All hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day work cycle shall be compensated for with pay at the rate of time and one-half regular salary. For the purpose of this section, vacation, sick leave and holiday bank time used shall be considered as time worked. For any employee called in to work other than during the scheduled work shift, a minimum of two (2) hours pay shall be granted at the rate of one and one-half (1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>) times at their base rate of pay.

11.3 Court time. An employee who is required to appear in Court during the employee's scheduled off duty time shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at one and one-half (1 <sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>) times the employee's base pay rate. Effective the date of ratification of the agreement by both parties, an employee shall receive two (2) hours of stand-by pay at straight time if court is canceled without a minimum of 24 hours' notice and the employee is on scheduled off duty time. An extension or early report to a regularly scheduled shift for Court appearance does not qualify the employee for the two (2) hours minimum court time or cancellation time. Said payment is subject to appropriate verification.

The parties will hold informal discussions on ideas to facilitate notice of court appearances to lessen the burden on employees while maintaining the need to have officers available for court when needed.

- 11.4 For any employee called in to work other than during the scheduled work shift, a minimum of two (2) hours pay\_shall be granted at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times at their base rate of pay.
- 11.5 Except as limited by Section 11.1 Work shifts, work breaks, staffing schedules and the assignment of employees thereto shall be established by the Employer.
- 11.6 Employees shall be required to work overtime or holidays when assigned unless excused by the Employer.
- 11.7 The base pay rate or premium compensation shall not be paid more than once for the same hours worked under any provisions of this Agreement, nor shall there be any pyramiding of premium compensation.
- <u>11.8.</u> The parties agree that the provisions of Minn. Stat. Sec. 181.9447, Subd. 1 clause 4 are waived and not applicable to the members of this bargaining unit.

#### **ARTICLEX 12: HOLIDAYS**

12.1 The following days are established holidays:

Columbus Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve Day (½ Day)
Christmas Day

- 12.2 Employees who do not work a holiday listed in Section 12.1 will receive pay for the holiday not worked.
- 12.3 Employees will receive two times their regular hourly rate for all hours actually worked on a holiday.
  - a. These hours will be considered hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime eligibility.
  - b. There will be no pyramiding or inclusion of holiday hours worked for compensation purposes. Specifically, no other premium or supplemental pay will apply for the hours actually worked on the holiday except for the Shift Differential and FTO pay (if applicable) as outlined in Appendix A. For example, an employee who works a 12 hour shift on the holiday will be paid for 24 hours total and will not be paid for the 12 hours worked plus an additional 24 hours.
  - c. For purposes of this Section, the designated holiday will be defined as any shift that starts on an actual holiday. The entire shift will be considered holiday hours.

## **ARTICLE 13: VACATIONS**

- 13.1 An employee shall be entitled in each calendar year to an annual vacation with full pay to be taken at such time as the Chief of Police shall designate. Vacation may be accumulated during the probationary period, but may not be used until the probationary period has been completed.
- 13.2 Accumulation of the annual vacation period from year to year shall be allowed, not to exceed the maximum of 220 hours.
- 13.3 Vacation time for permanent full time and part-time employees shall be earned and credited during each two (2) week period. Employees will accrue vacation time as listed below:

Years of	Hours of	Max
Service	<u>Vacation</u>	Accumulation
<u>0-2</u>	<u>80</u>	<u>120 Hours</u>
<u>2-5</u>	120	<u>140 Hours</u>
<u>5-10</u>	<u>160</u>	<u>180 Hours</u>

<u>10-14</u>	<u>180</u>	<u>200 Hours</u>		
<u>15+</u>	<u>200</u>	<u>220 Hours</u>		

For the 2025-2027 contract period: an employee may designate up to (2025 - 40 hours; 2026 - 60 hours; 2027 - 60 hours) up to the current cap of 220 hours no later than December 15th of each year the amount of hours that will go into their HCSP fund at the end of the year. Funds will be transferred to the HCSP in the beginning of following year. Example: 2025 hours transfer in January 2026.

13.4 Prior to April 1<sup>st</sup> of each year, the Chief will consult all employees eligible for vacations. From such consultations, the Chief will establish working and vacation schedules with first consideration given to the efficient operation of the Department and second to the wishes of the employees as to vacation time. Senior employees shall be given vacation request preference provided that such vacation request is made prior to April 1<sup>st</sup> of each year. Any requests for vacation after April 1<sup>st</sup> of each year shall be on a first come, first served basis. Employees may use vacation days in blocks of eight (8), ten (10), or twelve (12) hours (depending upon the length of the normal shift assignment) with approval of the Chief of Police.

## **ARTICLE 14: FUNERAL LEAVE**

An employee may take up to a maximum of three (3) paid days for the death of a spouse, child, step child, father, mother, spouse s mother or father, sister, brother, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparent or grandchild and such time shall not be charged to sick or vacation time. The Employer may allow an Employee to take additional sick leave to attend a funeral. The City may ask the employee to provide verification that the employee attended the funeral.

#### **ARTICLE 15: DISCIPLINE**

- 15.1 For the purpose of this Article, an employee shall be any employee having successfully completed the probationary period.
- 15.2 The Employer will discipline employees for just cause only discipline will be in one or more of the following forms:
  - A. Oral reprimand;
  - B. Written reprimand;
  - C. Suspension;
  - D. Demotion;
  - E. Discharge.
- 15.3 Suspensions, demotions or discharges will be in written form.

- 15.4 Written reprimands, notices of suspension and notices of discharge which are to become a part of an Employee's personnel file shall be read and acknowledged by signature of the employee. Employees will receive a copy of such reprimands and/or notices.
- 15.5 Employees may examine their own individual personnel files at reasonable times under the direct supervision of the Employer.
- 15.6 Grievances relating to a suspension or discharge shall be initiated by the Union at Step  $\underline{2}$  of the Grievance Procedure.

## **ARTICLE 16: WAGE RATE**

16.1 The pay rates applicable to personnel covered by this Agreement are set forth on Appendix "A", entitled "Pay Plan", attached hereto and hereby made part of this Agreement.

Employees shall be placed at their appropriate level on the salary plan commensurate with their years of experience with the St. Francis Police Department. Employees who receive an acceptable performance review and are not at the top of the salary range shall be eligible for step movement on the anniversary date of employment

## **ARTICLE 17: UNIFORMS**

- 17.1 The Employer will provide an initial set of uniforms for new employees. The uniform will consist of:
  - 3 pants
    3 long sleeve shirts
    3 short sleeve shirts
    1 jacket summer weight
    3 short sleeve shirts
    1 cap badge
    1 winter hat
    2 large insignia collar brass
    2 ties
    2 small insignia collar brass
    2 ties
    1 shirt badge
    2 name plates
    1 jacket badge
  - 1 rain coat l pair of boots

1 - body armor: The City hereby agrees to purchase body armor for each member of the bargaining unit, and provide maintenance of the outer shell of the armor as provided for under the State reimbursement program, with the understanding that the armor purchased will be agreed upon by the Union Steward and the Police Chief. The City will replace body armor every five years.

17.2 Thereafter, each employee (except employees who have been employed by the Police Department less than one year) shall have a uniform allowance up to \$700 annually to

replace worn or damaged items listed above or leather items worn while working. In order to use this amount, the employee must submit a request for the article of replacement clothing or accessory on a form prepared the by the Police Chief. The Police Chief or designee will then order the article and charge the amount against the Employee's uniform allowance. The Police Chief may not deny a properly submitted uniform request unless the request would exceed the allowance or if the request covered an article of clothing that is not listed above or does not replace an existing accessory. Employees terminating from the Police Department for any reason must return their entire uniform, including accessories, except for any items that were individually purchased by the officer using resources other than the uniform allowance or the leather replacement for items initially furnished by the employee.

#### **ARTICLE 18: INSURANCE**

- 18.1 Employees of this bargaining unit shall receive the same health and life insurance and, except as otherwise provided in this agreement, other pension and welfare benefits and dollar amount as is extended to the nonunion City of St. Francis employees. In the event this amount is increased during the term of this Agreement for the City's nonunion employees, the increase or additional pension or welfare benefit shall also apply to members of this bargaining unit.
- 18.2 The City of St. Francis will provide a professional liability insurance policy, customarily referred to as false arrest insurance, for each police officer at a cost provided by the City.

#### **ARTICLE 19: SEVERANCE PAY**

19.1 When an employee resigns employment the employee will provide the department with a minimum of two weeks' notice unless another notice period has been stipulated by the department. Failure to comply with this procedure may be considered cause for denying such Employee's future employment with the City and severance pay.

#### **RETIREMENT NOTICE PROGRAM, effective 01-01-2024**

This program is to strengthen city succession planning efforts that will facilitate the transfer of vital institutional knowledge from long-time employees to new hires. Employees who are retiring from an FTE position, meets PERA eligible status, and have been with the City for at least ten years shall be eligible for the following payment. The notice length is based on date of Council retirement acceptance.

180-day notice - \$1000.00 severance payment

120-day notice - \$500.00 severance payment 90-day notice - \$250.00 severance payment

#### SEVERANCE PAY, effective 01-01-2024

Employees who leave the City in good standing by retirement or resignation will receive pay for 100% of unused accrued vacation up to the maximum accrual amount by years of service and will follow the schedule for accrued sick leave:

The payment for accrued sick leave shall be applied towards the Employee's Minnesota State Retirement Health Care Savings Plan.

Up to 8 years of service	50% of accrued sick leave
9 to 16 years of service	65% of accrued sick leave
17 years or more of service	80% of accrued sick leave

Good standing is defined as the Employee providing the required notice of resignation and voluntary resigning reasons other than in anticipation of discharge. In those cases, in which an Employee terminates employment and fails to give required notice of resignation or if the employee is terminated for cause, the right to severance pay shall be reviewed on an individual basis and determination of eligibility shall be within the discretion of the Employer.

#### **ARTICLE 20: POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE SAVINGS**

- 20.1 Members of the bargaining unit will be subject to the City's MSRS Health Care Savings Plan (HCSP) on the same basis and subject to the same contributions and limitations applicable to nonunion employees. This Plan is subject to the requirements and restrictions of Minnesota Statutes Section 352.98. Generally stated, it allows employees the opportunity to save money on a pre-tax basis to pay for medical expenses and/or health insurance premiums after termination of public service. Employees will be able to choose from several different investments options provided by the State Board of Investments. Assets in the program will accumulate tax-free.
- 20.2 Employees terminating employment under honorable conditions after eighteen (18) months of continuous employment will receive severance pay which shall be computed at the employee's regular rate of pay at the time of severance and shall amount to fifty percent (50%) of the accumulated sick leave balance. This amount will be placed into the employee's Health Care Savings Plan provided that the employee meets the eligibility requirements of Section 20.1 (requiring eighteen (18) months of service) at the conversion rate established by the City Council pursuant to section 17.6 the employee is not eligible to receive the 50% balance of accumulated sick leave.
- 20.3 The City will contribute an additional amount equal to two percent (2%) of the employee's wage to the employee's existing Health Care Savings Plan.

## **ARTICLE 21: PROBATIONARY PERIOD**

- 21.1 The probationary period shall be twelve (12) months or two thousand eighty (2,080) hours. At any time during the probationary period, a newly hired or rehired Employee may be terminated at the sole discretion of the Employer and the Employee may not appeal the termination through the grievance procedure.
- 21.2 The probationary period for a promoted employee in this bargaining unit shall be six (6) months or one thousand forty (1,040) hours. At any time during the probationary period, a promoted Employee may be returned to the employee's previous position at the Employer's discretion.

## **ARTICLEX 22: SENIORITY**

- 22.1 For the purposes of layoffs and recall, seniority is defined as an Employee's most recent period of continuous service with the Department.
- 22.2 The City shall consider the layoff of Employees by classification within their departmental division in the inverse order of seniority providing the remaining Employees have the demonstrated ability and qualifications to perform the remaining work as determined by the City.
- 22.3 Employees on layoffs shall be recalled in the order of seniority, providing that those recalled have the demonstrated ability and qualifications to perform the available work as determined by the City.
- 22.4 In the event of layoff, the Employee shall notify the Union Steward 30 days prior to layoff.
- 22.5 Seniority shall terminate upon:
  - a. Discharge
  - b. Voluntary quitting
  - c. Layoff for a period of one (1) year or more
  - d. Failure of the employee to accept and report for work within one (1) week after notification of recall.
  - e. The employee obtaining a leave of absence by false or misleading statements
- 22.6 Shift rotation shall be selected on the basis of seniority.

## **ARTICLE 23: COMPLETE AGREEMENT**

- 23.1 This Agreement constitutes the complete and total collective bargaining agreement between the parties and shall prevail between the Employer and the Union with respect to wages, hours of work and other conditions of employment and shall supersede all previous and current practices not contained herein.
- 23.2 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make requests and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the complete understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this agreement. Therefore, the Employer and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement.
- 23.3 This Agreement may be amended any time during its life upon the mutual consent of the Employer and the Union. Such amendment, to be enforceable, must be in writing and attached to all executed copies of this Agreement.

# **ARTICLE 24: DURATION**

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2027, and shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter unless either party shall notify the other, in writing, by June 1, 2027, or by June 1 prior to any subsequent anniversary date, that it desires to modify or terminate this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed this \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_,2024.

FOR THE CITY OF ST. FRANCIS

LAW ENFORCEMENT LABOR SERVICES, INC.

Mayor

Business Agent

City Administrator

Steward

### **APPENDIX A: SALARY SCHEDULE**

#### SALARY SCHEDULE

2025 - 9% market adjustment / 3% Cola 2026 - 5% market adjustment / 3% Cola

2027 - 3% Cola

ants										
Year	Incre ase	St ep	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
	Mark et	Co la								
2024			\$ 39.30	\$ 40.72	\$ 42.11	\$ 43.53	\$ 44.90	\$ 46.28	\$ 47.69	\$ 49.10
2025	9%	3%	\$ 44.12	\$ 45.72	\$ 47.28	\$ 48.87	\$ 50.41	\$ 51.96	\$ 53.54	\$ 55.12
2026	5%	3%	\$ 47.72	\$ 49.45	\$ 51.13	\$ 52.85	\$ 54.52	\$ 56.19	\$ 57.90	\$ 59.61
2027		3%	\$ 49.15	\$ 50.93	\$ 52.66	\$ 54.44	\$ 56.16	\$ 57.88	\$ 59.64	\$ 61.40

All amounts are subject to rounding. In the event of a rounding difference between these amounts and payroll, payroll shall govern.

Supplement Pay:

Sorao

**Shift Differential** - Any officer who works a shift that begins before 6:00 a.m. or ends after 6:00 p.m. shall be entitled to receive night differential pay for the entire shift provided, however, that the officer must work a minimum of four (4) hours of the shift between 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. Night differential pay shall be one dollar (\$1.00) per hour.

**<u>FTO</u>** - Employees assigned to conduct field training for new employees shall receive 2 hours pay for each 8, 10, or 12 hours of Field Training Officer duties.

4508392.1